IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SID S. WHYTE

CLERK, SUPPLEME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

٧.

Case No. 78,084

PHILLIP EUGENE GUESS, JR.,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAMEE W. ROGERS
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
FLORIDA BAR NO. 325791

LAURA RUSH ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 613959

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner State of Florida, prosecuting authority in the trial court and appellee in the district court, will be referred to herein as "the State." Respondent Phillip Eugene Guess, Jr., the defendant in the trial court and appellant in the district court, will be referred to herein as "Guess" or "Respondent." Reference to the record will be made by use of the symbol "R" followed by the appropriate page number(s). Reference to the transcript of trial proceedings will be by use of the symbol "T" followed by the appropriate page number(s). Reference to the district court's opinion, attached herein as Appendix A, will be made by use of the abbreviation "App. A", followed by the appropriate page number.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The state on April 26, 1989 charged respondent Guess with one count of burglary, in violation of section 810.02, Florida Statutes, and one count of sexual battery upon a person 12 years of age or older, without consent, with threat of force or violence likely to cause serious personal injury, in violation of section 794.011(3), Florida Statutes.

The defense on the first day of trial submitted a motion to suppress a custodial statement made by Guess to Deputy Sheriff Archie Roberson. The motion alleged that Roberson did not properly advise Guess of his constitutional rights and that Guess may have made certain statements which were not freely, voluntarily and intelligently made after a proper appraisal of his constitutional rights. The motion, in addition, alleged that the statements made by Guess were the product of misunderstanding and miscommunication between Guess and Roberson and, as such, were irrelevant and inadmissible. (R 26)

The defense on the first day of trial also submitted a motion in limine, alleging that the victim stated that Guess had threatened serious personal injury to herself and her son, and that because Guess was not charged with sexual battery by threat of retaliation or retribution to the victim's son, or with sexual battery by threat of serious personal injury to the son, the victim's statement would be irrelevant and extremely prejudicial. (R 28)

- 2 -

In presenting the motion, the defense appeared to orally amend the allegations of the motion in limine, so as to conform to the allegations of the motion to suppress. (T 96)

The court initially did not rule on either motion, noting that the motion to suppress "is not exactly timely."

(T 97) The state agreed to not mention the custodial statement in its opening statement. (T 98)

During trial the state proffered Roberson's testimony as to the custodial statement. (T 237-243) Roberson testified that, following Miranda warnings, he asked Guess "had he raped D. R.?" (T237) Roberson stated Guess's response was, "no, that he had never had sex with D. R., period." (T 237) On cross-examination during the proffer, Roberson stated that at the time he questioned Guess about D. R., a warrant had been issued against Guess in another case involving a charge of sexual misconduct with a minor, P. B. (T 237, 239) Roberson questioned Guess about D. R. on March 20, 1989 after his arrest, but a sworn complaint was not filed for the sexual battery of R. until April 6, 1989. (T 238) Roberson stated that Guess was arrested on March 20, 1989 for both the D. R. and P. B. cases. (T 239) Roberson stated that he questioned Guess about the P. B. case on March 20, and that Guess "didn't say anything, other than he wasn't guilty of it, " (T242) When

Guess was brought to the jail on March 20, Roberson advised him of his Miranda rights, of the warrant outstanding in the P. B. case, and that there had been an accusation of sexual battery made against him by D. R. and a complaint filed on that charge. (T 243) Roberson said Guess then stated "that he had never had sex with D.R., period." (T 243) Roberson clarified that the complaint was actually not filed until April 6. (T 243 Roberson stated that his rendition of Guess's statement was the exact statement made by Guess to the best of his knowledge. (T 243-244) Roberson repeated that statement as: "I have not had sex with D. R., period." (T 244)

Defense counsel at this time requested that Guess be permitted to testify concerning the voluntariness admissibility of the purported statement. (T 244) The court declined to permit Guess to testify, stating, in part, that "now you haven't really made a timely motion to suppress the statement." (T 244) The court stated that if it determined that the statement was voluntary, then Guess, if he chose to testify, could tell the jury that the statement was not freely and voluntarily given. (T 244-245) The court agreed to entertain additional argument about whether the statement was freely and voluntarily given. 245) Defense counsel stated that Guess would have proffered testimony that when he spoke with Roberson "he was confused and misled and misunderstood the thrust of the questioning, and did not accurately respond to the questions." (T 245)

The state and the defense then argued the voluntariness of the statements. (T 245-247) In part, defense counsel argued that the court was forcing Guess to testify by refusing to permit him to proffer his testimony on the voluntariness of the statement. (T 247) The court responded that the defense had had an opportunity to make a timely motion to suppress, and had not done so. (T 248) Following the argument, the court overruled the objection to the admissibility of the statement. (T 248)

The court did not rule on the motion in limine.

The jury returned a verdict of guilty on both counts as charged. (R 55) The trial court sentenced Guess within the guidelines to nine years incarceration to be followed by 6 years probation. (R 58,62)

Guess raised three issues on appeal. The district court, citing Land v. State, 293 So.2d 704 (Fla. 1974), McDonnell v. State, 336 So.2d 553 (Fla. 1976) and Kitchens v. State, 240 So.2d 321 (Fla. 1st DCA 1970), held that the trial court's refusal to permit Guess to testify out of the presence of the jury regarding the voluntariness of his statement required reversal of his convictions and remand for a new trial. (App. A at 5) The court noted, however, that reversal of the convictions seemed unduly harsh in this case under circumstances showing that

1) $i\,t$ is apparent $t\,h\,e$ defendant's statement was voluntary; (2) the

defendant's later testimony revealed that he really wasn't challenging the voluntariness of the confession, but only indicated that he misunderstood the question; (3) the statement in question was not a confession but an exculpatory statement; and (4) defense counsel was allowed to argue the substance of defendant's testimony prior to the determination of voluntariness.

(App. A at 5)

The court noted that the United States Supreme Court in Arizona v. Fulminante, 111 S.Ct. 1246, 5 F.L.W. Fed. S149, (U.S. March 26, 1991) indicated that the admission of a coerced confession may constitute harmless error. The court also noted that, in this case, where the statement clearly was not coerced and the error was only procedural, the argument for application of the harmless error rule was even more compelling than in Arizona v. Fulminante, and, therefore, certified the following two questions:

- I. WHETHER IN LIGHT OF THE SUPREME COURT OPINION IN <u>ARIZONA V. FULMINANTE</u> THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT TO TESTIFY OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY AS TO VOLUNTARINESS MAY CONSTITUTE HARMLESS ERROR?
- 11. WHETHER UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS OR SIMILAR CASES THE TRIAL, COURT'S FAILURE TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT TO TESTIFY OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY AS TO VOLUNTARINESS MAY CONSTITUTE HARMLESS ERROR.

The State filed a Motion for Stay of Mandate during the pendency of this petition. This court on July 9, 1991 granted the motion, thereby staying proceedings in the First District Court of Appeal and the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial Circuit in and for Baker County.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The state presented the testimony of victim D. R., examining physician Dr. David Jone, R.'s former boyfriend, P.C., R.'s mother, M.M., Deputy

Archie Roberson, and crime lab analyst Lethenia Meadows.

R. testified that on March 19, 1989, while she was working the 3 to 11 p.m. shift at a truck stop restaurant, she spoke with respondent Phillip Guess after another waitress showed her a photograph of her child, which Guess had handed to the waitress. (T 114) Phillip Guess was the younger brother of the child's father, Jim Guess, and, therefore, the child's uncle. (T 114, 128) R. said Guess asked her if he could come over to her house to see his nephew. (T 114) R. said she told Guess he could visit at a decent hour during the day since she worked evenings. (T 115) Guess left the truck stop before dark. (T 115) R. left work at 11 p.m., (T 115) R.'s aunt, whose mother was baby-sitting R.'s 2-year-old child, rode with her, and they stopped to pick up a loaf of bread at a store. (T 115) R.'s former boyfriend, P.C., pulled up at the store and asked if he could pick up some stomach medicine he had left at her house. (T 115-116) R. told him he could. (T 116) C. followed R. to her aunt's house to pick up the child, and then followed her home in his truck. (T 116) When R. and C. pulled up to the house, Guess was there. (T 116) R. was surprised to see Guess.

117) Guess said he wanted to see her child, and since the child was awake, R. told him he could come in and see him. Guess and the child were playing around on the (T 117) Guess stayed until about 3 a.m. (T 117) did not ask Guess to spend the night with her. (T 118) Guess drank beer from a six-pack he brought to the house, but neither C. nor R. drank with Guess. (T 118) When R. asked Guess to leave, Guess went outside, and C. was still inside. (T 119) Guess asked R. if he could sleep in his car, and she told him he could. (T 119) R. changed into a long T-shirt, put her child to bed, and laid down with the child. (T119) She told C. to turn the lights off and to lock the door when he left. (T 119) C. was the last one to leave. (T 119) Three or four days, or a week, earlier a doctor told R. she had had a She was taken by ambulance to a miscarriage. (T 119) hospital. (T 120) She did not know she was pregnant. (T Later, she learned that she had not suffered a 120) miscarriage at that time, but was still pregnant. she had taken medication for the miscarriage which could have affected the fetus, she decided to have an abortion. (T 121) The baby's father was (T 121) At about 5 to 5:30 a.m. on the morning of March 20, R. was awakened when Guess climbed on her bed. (T 122) R. told him to leave, and Guess pushed her down, saying that he hated to do this, but he had to. (T 122) R. told him she had just had a miscarriage, and was

bleeding. (T 122) R. was crying. (T 122) Guess pulled her clothes off. (T 122) R. child started crying and Guess told her to make the child be quiet. (T 123) Guess told her he had a knife, and R. would regret it if the child did not shut up. (T 123) R. said she tried to quiet her child. (T 123) Guess did not show her the knife. (T 123) R. fought Guess, but he was on top of her, and finally had intercourse with her. (T 123-124) bleeding, and blood was all over the sheets. (T124) R. did not consent to sex with Guess. (T 124) R. pain from what she then thought was a miscarriage. (T 124) After, Guess told her to take a shower. (T 124) Guess acted like he regretted what he had done. (T 124) R. took a shower with her shirt on, and Guess stayed in the bathroom. (T125) She got her clothes back on, and checked on her child. (T 125) She asked Guess to leave, and he would not. (T 125) Guess finally left, and told R. he would return in an hour with his mother. (T 126) Guess left, R. was crying and upset. (T 126) She went straight to her mother's house, and asked her mother to come back to her trailer. (T 126) She told her mother what happened. (T126) She found her house keys on the floor of her child's bedroom. (T 126) R. did not give Guess consent to return. (T126) After she told her mother, R. immediately went to the police station and made out a written statement. (T 127) On cross-examination, R. said that Guess's brother Jim was the father of her child, and

she dated and lived with Jim about 2 and one-half years. (T She had met Respondent Guess two or three times while she was dating Jim. (T 128) She lived with C. a few months after the relationship with Jim. (T 129) Around March 1, 1989, R. and C. moved into a trailer about 10 feet away from R. mother's house. (T 129) began working in the truck stop in March 1989, after she and C. split up. (T 130) R. recognized the man who had a picture of her son as Guess. (T 130) She asked Guess how he got the picture. (T 130) R. was aware that her mother had met Guess in a bas in Baldwin, and that Guess had asked R. mother if he could **see** the child, but R. remember if her mother told her that she had given Guess a picture of the child. (T 131) R. talked with Guess at the truck stop about Jim's relationship with the child, his payment of child support and his visitation with the child. (T 132) Guess asked if he could come over, but he did not ask if he could come over that night. (T132) R. did not tell Guess where she lived. (T 135) While Guess initially was at her house, there was a game of tossing R. house keys back and forth between Guess and the child. (T 138) Guess did not at any time come into R.'s bedroom to talk with her before he went outside at 3 a.m. (T 139) heard both C.'s and Guess's vehicle crank up outside, and she then went to sleep. (T 140) When Guess came back inside later, he pulled R.'s clothes off. (T 142) kicked Guess to try to get him away from her. (T 143)

Guess's pants were already unbuttoned and down, though not (T 144) After attacking R., and having her shower, Guess told her he was going to his mother's house, and gave her directions how to get there. (T 145-146) Guess told her that "the law and Jim Guess better be there within an hour, and, if not, he and his mother would be back. (T 146) After R. went to her mother's house, she called Jim, and then called the law. (T 146) R. told Jim where his brother was. (T 147) R. then called C. and told him that Guess had raped her. (T 147) (T 148) She did not tell C. details of the incident. (T 148) A deputy came to R. house, but took no evidence. (T 149) Roberson later told her to get the sheets off the bed. 149) R.'s written statement did not relate the details of how she met Guess the evening of March 19. (T 150) R. did not mention C. because she did not want to involve C. and C. was not there when Guess raped her. (T 151) When R. made out the written statement for police, she wrote that she asked Guess, not C., to lock the doors on his way out. (T152-153) R. called C. that morning to find out if Guess had left when C. did. (T 152) R. did not want to call Jim, but feared Guess because he had threatened her with a knife. (T 153) R. said she asked C., not Guess, to lock the doors. 154) R. learned that Guess had asked her landlord which trailer was hers. (T 155) R. told her landlord that if she had known something like this was going to happen, she

would not have let Guess come over. (T 155) By stating that to her landlord, R. did not mean that she knew Guess was coming over that night, (T 156) When R. went to the hospital for the apparent miscarriage on March 14, they told her not to engage in sex for one week. (T 160) R. stated that she wasn't sure which day the apparent miscarriage occurred. (T 161) R. found out later that she had not had a miscarriage on March 14, but was still pregnant. (T 163) She had an abortion on April 14. (T 163) On May 24, 1989, when R. was deposed, she did not disclose that she had learned that she did not have a miscarriage on March 14, and therefore was still pregnant when the crime occurred on March 20. (T 164)

Dr. David Jones testified that he examined R. on March 20, 1989 at the Sexual Assault Treatment Center. (T Jones found evidence of the presence of sperm. 179) He observed a red creamy discharge, which could have caused by infection, laceration, miscarriage been pregnancy related bleeding. (T 181, 184) Jones opined that R. had had recent intercourse within 3 to 4 days. (T184) Jones would not necessary expect to find genital trauma in a woman who had been assaulted in Rowe's circumstances. (T R. was composed when Jones examined her. (T 189) Jones found no scratches or bruises on R.. (T 189) Jones found no evidence either to support or to contradict an allegation of forced sexual activity. (T 193)

C. testified that he saw R. at a jiffy mart after she left work on March 19. (T196) He followed R. to her house to pick up medication for his stomach. (T196) When they arrived, Guess was there. (T 196) All of them went inside the house. (T 197) Guess played with the (T 197) R. asked C. to stay because of Guess's unexpected visit. (T 197) R. was surprised to see Guess. (T 198) R. made no amorous advances toward Guess. (T198) R. seemed nervous about Guess's presence. (T 198) Guess asked C. whose keys were on the counter, and C. told him they were R.'s. (T 199) locked both doors to the trailer himself, and left after Guess. (T 199) C. heard Guess ask R. if he could sleep in his car. (T 199) C. told Guess it might be best if Guess left. (T199) C. left, and stopped down the road, waiting for Guess to leave. (T200) C. said he waited for Guess because R. was nervous about Guess and C. had concerns about the purpose of Guess's visit. (T 200) C. did not go back to R.'s home, but rather went to his home. (T 200) C. had not resumed a relationship with R., except for friendship. (T 204) Guess spent most of the time talking to R. rather than playing with the child. (T 205-206) Neither C. nor R. drank with Guess. (T206) R. took the child to the child's bedroom to put him to bed. (T 208) C. then told Guess that he was going to leave. (T 208) Guess told C. he was going to go back toward either the bedroom or

bathroom. (T 208) Guess told C. he was going to say goodnight or talk to R. (T 210) C. did not see Guess come out of the bedroom. (T 208) C. did not hear any conversation between Guess and R. (T 209) Guess told C. he was going to sleep in the car. (T210) C. went to talk to R., and made sure the doors were locked. (T 211) When he went outside, Guess was there. 211) The next morning R. called him. (T 213) R. told C. that Guess had come in the house when ${\bf she}$ was asleep and told her he had a knife. (T 214) R. told C. that the child was crying, that Guess slapped her and told her to make the child be quiet, and threw her on the floor. (T 218) During his deposition, C. clarified on redirect examination, he stated that R. had not had anything to drink from the time she got off work until C. left. (T 220)

M H. testified that she was R mother, and that R. lived about 15 feet in front of her home in a trailer. (T 227) Guess came to her home on the night of March 19. (T 228) H. identified Guess in court. (T 228) Guess asked her if R lived in the trailer in front of her, and she told him yes but that R. was not at home. (T 229) Between 7 and 8 a.m. the next morning, R. came to her home. (T 229) R. was crying and shaking all over. (T 229) R. asked her mother to come to her trailer. (T 229) R. was crying "real bad" and she said Guess had raped her. (T 230) H. had never seen her daughter

that upset. (T 230) H. had seen Guess at a bar in Baldwin in November 1988. (T 230) Guess asked her about R. child, and asked if he could go see the child. (T 231) Guess asked her for a photo. (T 231) Guess asked for directions to her home, then in Baldwin. (T 231) H. told R. she had seen Guess and that he had wanted to see the child and that she had given him a picture. (T 231-232) During the night H. did not hear any screaming or commotion. (T 232) H. had her air conditioning on in the trailer that night. (T 233)

The state proffered testimony of Archie Roberson for the purposes of determining its admissibility. (T 234-241) Roberson stated he placed Guess under arrest and read him his Miranda rights. (T 234-235) Guess appeared to understand his rights and did not appear to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol. (T 236) Roberson asked Guess if he understood his rights. (T 240) Roberson asked $him\ if\ he\ had\ raped\ R$, and Guess stated that he had never had sex with R , period. (T 237) When Roberson picked Guess up on March 20, there was a warrant for his arrest in another case involving another victim, P В (T 239) Guess was arrested in that case on March 20, as well as for the R incident. (T 239) Guess was advised of the charge. (T 239) The complaint in the R case was not prepared until April 6. (T 240) Guess said he didn't know anything about the E sexual misconduct charge, other than he wasn't quilt of it. (T 242) Defense

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