17 FI ED

MUG 8 1991

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

August 7, 1991

CLERK, SHPREME COURT

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

PHILLIP EUGENE GUESS, JR.

Respondent.

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

LAW OFFICES OF SPRINGFIELD & GUNSON, P.A.

CASE NO:

78,084

DENNIS B. GUNSON, ESQUIRE 605 N.E. 1st Street, Ste. G Gainesville, FL 32601 (904)371-9909 Florida Bar No: 0612480

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

PETITIONER argues that the decision in Fulminante v. Arizona renders the failure to allow the Defendant to testify outside the presence of the jury as to the voluntariness of a confession, subject to harmless error analysis, The decision in Fulminante did not address the well settled and voluminous body of law that the Defendant must be allowed to testify to voluntariness outside the presence of the jury.

The <u>Fulminante</u> decision addressed the evidentiary impact of an improperly introduced involuntary confession. The error which occurred in this case affects the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment rights of the Defendant and is a structural defect in the trial mechanism. The failure to allow the Defendant to testify at **a** proffer put the Defendant in **a** Hobson's choice between not testifying at trial, and arguing the voluntariness of the statement introduced against him.

The burden to the State where a proper proffer is **held** is minimal and does not hinder effective police procedure. The difficulty for an appellate court reviewing the facts where an involuntary confession was introduced is significantly increased where no adequate proffer occurs.

In this case, the Defendant testified at trial before the jury. The Defendant may not have related the entire circumstance of his confession for fear of prejudice and opening the door to other unrelated allegations of sexual battery.

The circumstances of this case indicate the introduction of

the Defendant's statement without a proper proffer was not harmless error because there was no other evidence of guilt besides the unreliable and impeached testimony of the victim.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I - WHETHER IN LIGHT OF THE SUPREME COURT OPINION IN ARIZONA V. FULMINANTE, THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT TO TESTIFY OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY AS TO VOLUNTARINESS MAY CONSTITUTE HARMLESS ERROR?

PETITIONER correctly states that under Florida Law a trial Court's failure to conduct a separate hearing on the voluntariness of a custodial statement, or confession outside of the presence of the jury is error of such proportions as to require a new trial. This procedural rule of protection still is and should be the law in Florida.

The Florida Procedural Rule is derived from the United States Supreme Court opinion in <u>Jackson v. Denno</u> 378 U.S. 368, **84 S.CT. 1774, 12 L.Ed. 2d 908 (1964).** In federal court, <u>Jackson</u> was codified in 18 USC 3501. <u>Jackson</u> has been followed throughout the nation with each state establishing its own procedure to adhere to the due process requirements. The voluminous cases on the particularities of this hearing have created an entire body of law independent from any other aspect of coerced confessions.

In Florida, this court outlined the hearing procedure ta be followed and also held that the error was so prejudicial that a new trial was required, McDole v. State 283 So2d 553 (Fla. 1973), Land v. State 293 So2d 704 (Fla. 1974), McDonnell v State 336 So2d 553 (Fla. 1976), Green v. State 351 So2d 941 (Fla. 1971).

The opinion of the United States Supreme Court in <u>Arizona v.</u>

<u>Fulminante</u> 111 \$.CT. 1246, **5 FLW FED.** \$\ \ 149 (U.S. March **26**, 1991)

did not address the significant and independent rule of law derived

from Jackson. The issue in Jackson was separate and distinct from the evidentiary impact of a coerced confession. Had the Supreme Court in Fulminante concluded otherwise it most likely would have spoken to the Jackson issue. The Petitioner's argument would have this court overrule a United States Supreme court decision that has provided constitutional protection to defendants since 1964, without any indication from that court that it should do so.

The <u>Fulminante</u> decision concluded that admission of an involuntary confession at trial was subject to a harmless error analysis. The court in Fulminante distinguished "trial errors" which are subject to harmless error from errors which create structural defects in the constitution of the trial mechanism. In this case the failure to allow the Defendant to testify during a <u>Jackson</u> hearing was a structural defect in the trial mechanism.

Under the Fulminante decision, an involuntary confession presented to the jury may be weighed against other evidence in the case and is subject to scrutiny under the appropriate harmless error analysis. The Fulminante court found the confessian had an evidentiary impact that is similar in both degree and kind to the erroneous admission of other types of evidence. In contrast, the failure to hold a Jackson hearing creates error which affects the entire framework within which the trial proceeds. The Defendant's fundamental right under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments are compromised for failure to hold a Jackson hearing. Without the opportunity to testify at a Jackson hearing, the Defendant must choose between his right to remain silent, or testify to the

involuntary nature of the confession in front of the jury. The trial procedure itself has unnecessarily restricted the defendant's rights, decisions and strategy. The prejudice to the Defendant in having to compromise his Fifth Amendment rights occurs regardless of the evidentiary impact of the introduction of the involuntary confession.

The Petitioner's argument that the mast adverse consequence of the trial court error was that an involuntary statement may have gone to the jury is erroneous. The most serious consequence was that the Defendant was forced, due to the nature of the trial mechanism into a Mobson's choice of choosing one right over another. The State erroneously cites <u>Jackson</u> for support that the only impact of the error was introduction of an involuntary confession. Further reading of <u>Jackson</u> at P. 923 Fn 16, states:

"Further obstacles to reliable and fair determination of voluntariness under the New York procedure results from the ordinary rules relating to cross-examination and impeachment. Although not the case here, an accused may well be deterred from testifying an the voluntariness issue when the jury is present because impeachment by proof vulnerability to convictions and broad cross-examination, both of whose prejudicial effects are familiar. The **fear** of such impeachment and extensive cross-examination in the presence of the jury that is to pass on quilt or innocence as well as voluntariness may induce a defendant to remain silent, although he is perhaps the only source of testimony of the facts underlining the claim of Where this occurs the determination of voluntariness is made upon less than all of the relevant evidence." <u>U.S. v. Carrignan</u> 342 U.S. 36, 496 Led. 48, 72 S.CT. 97.

The **error which** occurred affected the defendant throughout the course of the entire trial. The defendant may well have planned to not **take** the stand and argue the weakness of the State's case.

The defendant's counsel may not have prepared direct examination adequately with his client. This left the defendant subject to impeachment on such matters as the nature of prior convictions or other pending allegations. The prejudicial impact that such error has on the defendant during the course of his trial is enormous. In contrast, the burden on the State is minimal. The requirement of a Jackson hearing in which the defendant be given the opportunity to testify may take fifteer(15) minutes, The hearing poses no threat to the prosecutor's case. Prohibiting the introduction of an involuntary confession under the exclusionary rule may curtail effective police procedure, whereas an adequate Jackson hearing does nothing to ultimately hinder an effective and fair determination of the true facts.

There is also another adverse consequence in refusing to allow the defendant to testify at a <u>Jackson</u> hearing. A defendant who is not allowed to testify at the hearing may or may not subsequently testify in front of the jury. If the defendant does not testify in the front of the jury, there will be an absent or incomplete record as to the voluntary nature of the confession. If the defendant does testify in front of the jury, an appellate determination will have to be made as to whether the defendant freely explained the circumstances of his confession. The appellate court would have to have two separate standards of review, one for defendants who testified, and one for defendants who did not testify in front of the jury. The **State** may argue the defendant who did not testify to the jury waived his right to a

determination of voluntariness. This argument is surely violative of the Defendant's Fifth Amendment rights. The defendant who is prejudiced by the introduction of an involuntary confession at his trial, and was not allowed to testify at a <u>Jackson</u> hearing would have to weigh the court's appellate review as part of his decision of whether or not to testify. This consideration bears no relevance to the ultimate truth of the matter, nor maintains the integrity and confidence in the judicial system. The defendant should be given an opportunity to develop the facts of the voluntariness of his confession in the trial court, not on appellate review, <u>Cantrell</u> v. <u>Maxwell</u>, 298 F. Supp 1061, 1063 (1969).

The Petitioner argues that Crane v. Kentucky 476 U.S. 683, 106 S. CT. 2142, 90 L.Ed.2d 636 (1986) is a case more factually similar to this case than Fulminante and one where the court found it subject to harmless error to not allow a defendant to testify to the jury as to the voluntariness of his statement. Crane had nothing to do with a Jackson hearing. An initial determination of voluntariness at a hearing was held. The defendant was not put in any compromising position. The decision of the trial judge to allow testimony to the jury as to the confessions' voluntariness after a Jackson hearing was a trial error the same as prohibiting testimony on any matter because it was irrelevant. hearsay, immaterial, or otherwise objectionable. The Crane decision did not affect the trial mechanism the way the error in this case did.

It should be noted that the United **States** Suprema Court decided <u>Crane</u> in 1986. A full <u>Jackson</u> hearing has been required by the **U.S**. Supreme Court and by this Court for the five years since that decision, and no court has ruled that <u>Crane</u> makes a <u>Jackson</u> hearing error subject to harmless **error** analysis.

The Petitioner argues that in this case it is apparent no coercion was present. There is no way to know if coercion existed because the defendant was forced to testify before the jury and he may not have fully explained the circumstances surrounding the confession. Additionally, it has long been recognized that coercion may be mental as well as physical. <u>Jackson</u> at P,923, the instant case, the defendant was confused and mislead because of other allegations he was being accused of simultaneously. This very tactic Was criticized in Justice Douglas's concurring opinion It is also very possible that because law in <u>Carrignan</u>, enforcement officers were making other allegations of sexual abuse besides the instant charge, the defendant did not wish to fully detail the circumstances of the confession in front of the jury because of the prejudicial impact of having to testify and/or open the door to these other allegations.

Petitioner's appeal incorrectly states that both the motion to suppress and the argument of counsel during the mid-trial voluntariness hearing referenced only respondent's asserted confusion during the interrogation. The written motion filed indicates in paragraph (2) that the defendant was not properly advised of his constitutional rights, and in paragraph (3) that the

defendant may have made certain statements which were not freely, voluntarily, and intelligently made after a proper appraisal of his constitutional rights. (R26). Defendant's counsel, in arguing the defendant's right to testify, said he would ask that the defendant be allowed to testify concerning the voluntariness and other matters concerning the admissibility of purported statements (TR 244), and that the defendant was improperly denied access to counsel. (TR 246). The Petitioner's argument that there is no possibility the court would have found the confession voluntary is based on an inadequate record.

The statement in this case was a confession. introduced the statement to incriminate the defendant. Considering there was no evidence to support the allegation other than the testimony, statement, which was victim's the completely inconsistent with the defendant's explanation of consent, was probably the most damaging evidence against him. The Petitioner's argument that the statement is admissible because the confession was not one which the defendant systematically outlined culpable behavior is ludicrous. The Petitioner's logic would allow any statement, whether obtained through trickery, deceit, or even beatings to be admitted despite its impeachment potential, and regardless of its credibility as long as it didn't meet some layman's understanding of a confession.

The Petitioner argues the defendant in this case had to testify. This argument overlooks the fundamental principle that the State had the burden of proof in this case to prove the

allegations. The victim in this case admitted several times she was untruthful, once to law enforcement, and later to medical personnel. Her testimony was obscure and she was impeached by defense counsel. It is very possible that had the defendant's statement been thoroughly examined at a <u>Jackson</u> hearing and determined to be involuntary, the defendant would not have taken the stand and exposed himself to other prejudicial and irrelevant allegations of sexual battery.

In any event, the appellate court should not be in the position of guessing whether a defendant would or would not have taken the stand. A fifteen minute adequate <u>Jackson</u> hearing eliminates the need for speculation on a matter as important as rights under the Fifth and Fourteenth amendments.

ISSUE II - WHETHER UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS OR SIMILAR CASES THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT TO TESTIFY OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY AS TO VOLUNTARINESS MAY CONSTITUTE HARMLESS ERROR7

Contraryta the Petitioner's assertion, the facts establishing a sexual battery were not abundant. Atl of the circumstances the Petitioner outlined as indicative of rape are also consistent with the defendant's explanation that there was consentual sex, and that the victim became upset afterward because the defendant was going to talk to his brother, Jim, her ex-boyfriend and father of her child. R. admitted on the stand that she had been dishonest to both law enforcement and medical personnel, Her explanation for the deceit to law enforcement was that she did not want to involve Crowder and Jim Guess, yet she called both these persons the morning after the alleged attack. R. also was not entirely clear in her deposition testimony and her trial testimony as to whether she had been drinking that night. The explanation as to why a neighbor did not hear anything unusual in her trailer was that the neighbor's air conditioner was on. There was no evidence of physical restraint or injury. Guess and R. had met each other earlier and she had allowed him into her trailer to socialize with her and play with her child. R. gave a different account in her deposition from her trial testimony as to whether Guess took off her clothes, or simply pulled them down. Had the jury not heard Guess' statement to Archie Roberson, they would have been left with only the impeached testimony of R. at the end of the State's The introduced statement farced Guess to take the stand and case.

address its voluntariness as best he could without opening the door to other aspects of the B. allegation. It is impossible say that under the harmless error analysis this statement, beyond and to the exclusion of any reasonable doubt did not contribute to the jury's verdict. This is not a circumstance where the statement is in addition to other incriminating statements as in <u>Fulminants</u>. It is not a circumstance where the statement concerns some irrelevant matter. It is also not a situation where there was strong direct, or circumstantial evidence far which the statement WAS cumulative . The statement was introduced by the State for one purpose; to completely contradict the defendant's explanation that the sexual encounter was consentual. The Petitioner on page 39 of its' brief acknowledges the statement was directly inconsistent with the defense of consent and that the inconsistency between the statement and the defendant's claim of consent was clearly damaging to his credibility.

Under these circumstances, the error which occurred certainly cannot said to be harmless beyond and to the exclusion of any reasonable doubt and a new trial is necessary in this case.

+

CONCLUSION

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